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IS THIS AN AMENDED CHARGE?       YES         If so, Case No                                                                            NO                           

1. CHARGING PARTY:    EMPLOYEE     EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION     EMPLOYER      PUBLIC1   

a. Full name: SEIU Local 1000

b. Mailing Address: 1808 14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95811

c. Telephone number: (916) 554-1279

d. Name and title of agent to 
contact:

Theresa Witherspoon E-mail Address: twitherspoon@seiu1000.org

Telephone number: (916) 717-3515 Fax No.: (916) 554-1292
e. Bargaining Unit(s) 

involved:
17

2. CHARGE FILED AGAINST: (mark one only)  EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION        EMPLOYER 

a. Full name: California Department of Human Resources

b. Mailing Address: 1515 "S" Street, North Bldg, Suite 500 Sacramento, CA 95811

c. Telephone number: (916) 324-0512

d. Name and title of agent to 
contact:

Frolan Aguiling, Chief Counsel E-mail Address: frolang.aguiling@calhr.ca.gov

Telephone number: (916) 324-0512 Fax No.: (916) 323-4723

3. NAME OF EMPLOYER (Complete this section only if the charge is filed against an employee organization.) 

a. Full name:
b. Mailing address:

4. APPOINTING POWER: (Complete this section only if the employer is the State of California. See Gov. Code, §   18524.) 

a.  Full name: 
b.  Mailing Address:
c.  Agent:

1

5. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

1An affected member of the public may only file a charge relating to an alleged public notice violation, pursuant to Government Code section 3523, 3547, 3547.5, or 3595, or 
Public Utilities Code section 99569
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     Are the parties covered by an agreement containing a grievance procedure which ends in binding arbitration?

Yes        No       Unknown 

 6. STATEMENT OF CHARGE 

a. The charging party hereby alleges that the above-named respondent is under the jurisdiction of: (check one)

 Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA) (Gov. Code, § 3540 et seq.) 
 Ralph C. Dills Act (Gov. Code, §  3512 et seq.)  
 Higher Education Employer-Employee Relations Act (HEERA) (Gov. Code, §  3560 et seq.)  
 Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) (Gov. Code, §  3500 et seq.)  
 Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transit Employer-Employee Relations Act (TEERA)  

(Pub. Utilities Code, § 99560 et seq.)  
 Trial Court Employment Protection and Governance Act (Trial Court Act) (Article 3; Gov. Code, §  71630 –  

71639.5)  
Trial Court Interpreter Employment and Labor Relations Act (Court Interpreter Act) (Gov. Code, §  71800 et seq.)

b.  The specific Government or Public Utilities Code section(s) or PERB regulation section(s) alleged to have been violated is/are:

Government Code sections 3519(a), (b), and (c)

c. For MMBA, Trial Court Act and Court Interpreter Act cases, if applicable, the specific local rule(s) alleged to have been violated 
is/are (a copy of the applicable local rule(s) MUST be attached to the charge): 

d. Provide a clear and concise statement of the conduct alleged to constitute an unfair practice including, where known, the time and 
place of each instance of respondent’s conduct, and the name and capacity of each person involved.  This must be a statement of the 
facts that support your claim and not conclusions of law. A statement of the remedy sought must also be provided. (Use and attach 
additional sheets of paper if necessary.) 

See attached

DECLARATION

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read the above charge and that the statements herein are true and complete to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. (A Declaration will be included in the e-mail you receive from PERB once you have completed this screen. The 
person filing this Unfair Practice Charge is required to return a properly filled out and signed original Declaration to PERB pursuant to 
PERB Regulations 32140 and 32135.)

Theresa Witherspoon /s/ Theresa Witherspoon 10/26/2021
(Type or Print Name) (Signature) Date
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Statement of the Charge 

 
Background and Statement of Facts 
SEIU Local 1000 is the exclusive bargaining representative for State Bargaining Unit 17. The 
most recent Memorandum of Understanding between the State and Local 1000 is in effect for the 
period from January 2020 through June 2023. 
 
In August 2020, SEIU Local 1000 (“SEIU” or “Union”) filed an Unfair Practice Charge against 
the California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) alleging CDPH abdicated its bargaining 
obligation when it unilaterally ended a meet and confer process and implemented changes to the 
Health Facility Evaluator Nurse (“HFEN”) duty statement in violation of the Dills Act.  (See 
Exhibit A).  The parties reached a settlement agreement in which CDPH agreed to revoke the 
unilaterally implemented duty statement and revert to the 2017 duty statement in effect prior to 
the newly proposed duty statement.  (See Exhibit B).   The settlement agreement also stated: 
 

The parties agree that Respondent CDPH is not prohibited from continuing to exercise its 
management right to make changes to the duties and responsibilities of CDPH HFENs in 
alignment with the classification specification consistent with law. Any such changes that 
impact the terms and conditions of employment will be noticed to SEIU and subject to 
meet and confer over impact upon request by SEIU at such time that CDPH may propose 
such changes consistent with law.  
 

The unilaterally implemented duty statement had included tasks associated with Plans of 
Correction (“POC”) that had not previously been part of the HFEN duties.  POC’s are documents 
developed when a health care facility inspected by a HFEN has been found to be in violation of 
its regulatory duties and contains the required actions that a facility must take.  Facilities are 
responsible for proposing POC’s after they are found to not in compliance.  Although reviewing 
and approving POC’s had been a management responsibility, the proposed duty statement had 
included the statement:  

 
Conducts post-survey activities including reviewing health care facility plans of 
corrections. 

 
The 2017 HFEN duty statement contained no POC duties.  The Union fought back against 
including POC duties for several reasons.  Although HFENs go through a formal training 
program with CDPH, they are not trained on POC’s and are told that supervisors will be doing 
POC’s.  HFENs are concerned that if they approve POC’s that do not adequately protect patients, 
the HFENs could he held liable for endangering patients.  HFENs do not have the broad 
knowledge of the facilities’ history of past violations that supervisors have to sufficiently inform 
their review of POC’s.  All HFEN’s are licensed as Registered Nurses through the California 
Board of Registered Nursing; if they perform a task on which they have not been trained, they 
could be found to be performing tasks negligently or incompetently in violation of the duties of 
their license, which could result in discipline against their license.  This is especially concerning 
in the situation where edits are made by other staff to the POC without their permission and 
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Statement of the Charge 
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HFENs are still made to approve them.  This process turns HFEN’s into both inspectors and 
enforcers of the regulations, in violation of the 1987 Nursing Home Reform Act.          
 
The settlement agreement was reached between the parties in April 2021.  However, despite 
agreeing to revert to the duty statement that did not contain POC duties, since that time CDPH 
supervisors have repeatedly instructed HFEN’s to perform these duties.  HFEN job stewards 
brought this to the attention of CDPH leadership, and on August 13, 2021, Acting Deputy 
Director Cassie Dunham directed Field Operations Chief Mandi Posner to send a directive to 
HFEN management to stop assigning these tasks to HFENs.  (See Exhibit C).  Although that 
order was briefly abided by, CDPH Labor Relations staff told HFENs at a Joint Labor 
Management meeting on September 24, 2021, that this order was being lifted.  HFEN’s have 
been told to perform POC’s in more than five offices across the state, including but not limited 
to: Santa Rosa, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, and San Francisco.  Examples 
include: 
 

o On August 10, 2021, District Manager Diana Marana (“Marana”) emailed HFEN 
Loraine Planta and other HFENs asking them to review a POC and indicate any 
items that were not acceptable.  (See Exhibit D)   

o On August 13, 2021, Marana emailed HFEN Regina Baena and asked her to 
review a POC and determine if it was acceptable, and if not, to fill out an 
“unacceptable POC letter template” that would be sent to the facility.  (See 
Exhibit E)  

o On September 28, 2021, District Manager Hang Nguyen, told HFEN staff, 
including Heidi Chadwick, in the Orange County office via email that they would 
continue to be required to review POC’s.  (See Exhibit F.)  

o On October 22, 2021, District Manager Ruth Vera instructed HFEN Heidi 
Chadwick other HFENs to complete POC review and approvals (See Exhibit G)    

o On October 22, 2021, Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse Supervisor Nadja Marin 
directed HFEN Heidi Chadwick to review and approve POC’s.  (See Exhibit H)    

 
 
CDPH did not notify the Union of its intent to modify the duties of the HFENs.  The act is thus 
not only a violation of the settlement agreement but also an improper unilateral change that 
violates CDPH’s duty to bargain in good faith.     
 
Legal Argument  
 
Unilateral Change of Prohibited Subjects of Bargaining 
"The rule in California is well settled: [an employer's] unilateral change in a matter within the 
scope of representation is a per se violation of the duty to meet and confer in good faith." 
(California State Employees Association v. Public Employment Relations Bd. (1996) 51 
Cal.App.4th 923, 934-93 5.) Repudiation of a provision in the parties' MOU is a per se unilateral 
change. (Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (2012) PERB Dec. No. 2231-M.) 
I 
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PERB has found that unilateral actions are disfavored because they destabilize employer-
employee affairs, denigrate the representative's negotiating power and ability to perform as an 
effective bargaining agent in the eyes of employees, undermine exclusivity, and denigrate 
statutory sanctions for negotiations. (San Mateo Community College District ( 1979) PERB Dec. 
No. 94, 3 PERC Para. 10080.) 
 
CDPH’s imposing of the POC duty constitutes a unilateral change, after previously agreeing to 
revoke the duty statement that contained this duty.  Such changes have a continuing impact upon 
the term and conditions of the employment of BU 17 members. Unlawful unilateral changes 
have a "generalized impact or continuing effect" on the terms and conditions of employment. In 
considering whether CDPH's conduct has a generalized effect, it is useful to note that the 
changes referenced above are not merely one-time breaches of a contract - which have 
previously been found not to constitute an unlawful unilateral change. Instead, PERB has noted 
that under existing precedent, "a breach of contract amounts to a unilateral change where the 
party in breach asserts that the contract authorizes its conduct" or where the breach represents a 
"change in policy that is generally applicable to future situations." 
 
Moreover, CDPH cannot unilaterally impose proposals that are illegal. (See County of San Diego 
(2020) PERB Dec. No. 2721-M.)  Illegal subjects of bargaining include "matters prohibited by 
external law or public policy and may not be negotiated or included in a collective bargaining 
agreement, even if the parties were to agree to do so. Generally, where a proposal would deviate 
from an inflexible standard set by external law, it may be characterized as a prohibited, "illegal" 
or nonnegotiable subject of bargaining." (San Mateo City School Dist. v. Public Employment 
Relations Bd. (1983) 33 Cal.3d 850, 864-865.)  CDPH’s imposition of this duty endangers the 
licenses of RNs by requiring them to perform duties that they are not trained to perform.  POC’s 
are the means by which facilities are forced to fix problems that endanger their patients, and 
HFENs being assigned this task creates a hazardous situation.   
 
 
CDPH Engaged in Bad Faith Bargaining by Entering a Settlement Agreement and 
Reneging on it by Making a Unilateral Change 
CDPH’s violations of the settlement agreement here also demonstrate bad faith bargaining on the 
part of Respondent.  The settlement agreement made clear 1) that CDPH would revert to using 
the HFEN duty statement that contained the POC duty; and 2) it would notice the Union if there 
were any changes to the duties that required notice.   CDPH, however quickly moved to ignore 
its commitment and simply started assigning these duties without changing the duty statement or 
noticing the union. Despite this being brought to management’s attention, CDPH continues to 
allow its managers to inappropriately assign these duties.  Although PERB is limited in its ability 
to enforcement settlement agreements, the breach of an agreement may also constitute an Unfair 
Labor Practice where the breach amounts to a change of policy.  (Inglewood Unified School 
District (1986) PERB Dec. No. 593, p. 3).  CDPH acted in bad faith by agreeing to revoke the 
duty statement and then imposing the duty without notifying the Union.  This constitutes a 
violation of its duty to bargaining in good faith, and is a separate grounds for an unfair labor 
practice.   
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Expedited Review Requested 
The Union requests expedited review of this charge due to the importance and statewide 
significance of the conduct of CDPH, as set forth herein.  Over 500 employees may have their 
nursing licenses endangered as a result of CDPH’s violating a settlement agreement in which it 
agreed to revert to a duty statement that did not contain a duty that these nurses are untrained to 
perform.  This also potentially affects the safety of the patients in the facilities they inspect, since 
they are forced to approved safety measures using a process on which they are not trained.  
HFEN’s could be pulled into litigation resulting from improper POC’s being performed if they 
result in harm to patients.  Given CPDH’s blatant failure to follow its own agreement, it cannot 
be trusted to correct this issue, and PERB must step in quickly.   
 
Conclusion 
By the acts and conduct described above, the State interfered with the rights of bargaining unit 
employees being represented by Local 1000 in violation of Government Code section 3519(a). 
By the acts and conduct described above, the State interfered with the rights of Local 1000 to 
represent its bargaining unit employees in violation of Government Code section 3519(b). 
By the acts and conduct described above, the State failed to meet and confer in good faith with 
Local 1000 in violation of Government Code section 3519(c).   
 
Remedies 
Local 1000 requests that PERB order the following: 

• Cease and desist unilateral changes and interference; 
• Return employees to status quo ante; 
• Provide adequate notice of changes to the HFEN’s duties; 
• Bargain in good faith with Local 1000 representatives; 
• Any other appropriate relief; and 
• That any such PERB order be posted at worksite bulletin boards throughout the State of 
California where Local 1000 represented employees work. 
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(02/2021) Proof of Service 

PROOF OF SERVICE

I declare that I am a resident of or employed in the County of _______________________, 

State of ________________.  I am over the age of 18 years.  The name and address of my  

Residence or business is ____________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________________________

On ____________________, I served the ____________________________________ 
(Date)                (Description of document(s)) 

_________________________________ in Case No. ___________________________. 
  (Description of document(s) continued)          PERB Case No., if known) 

on the parties listed below by (check the applicable method(s)): 

placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope for collection and 
delivery by the United States Postal Service or private delivery service following 
ordinary business practices with postage or other costs prepaid; 

personal delivery; 

electronic service - I served a copy of the above-listed document(s) by 
transmitting via electronic mail (e-mail) or via e-PERB to the electronic service 
address(es) listed below on the date indicated.  (May be used only if the party 
being served has filed and served a notice consenting to electronic service or has 
electronically filed a document with the Board.  See PERB Regulation 32140(b).) 

(Include here the name, address and/or e-mail address of the Respondent and/or any other parties served.) 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed on _______________, 

(Date) 
at _______________________________________________. 

(City) (State) 

(Type or print name) (Signature) 

Proof of Service

claration was executed on ___________ ___ _____
(Date) 

______________.

(Signature) 

Sacramento

CA

1808 14th Street, Sacramento, CA 95811

10/26/21 Unfair Practice Charge

✔

Frolan Aguiling, Chief Counsel
Department of Human Resources
1515 S Street, North Building, Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95811-4124

10/26/21

Sacramento, CA

MARY A. WALSH
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD 

UNFAIR PRACTICE CHARGE 
DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE: Case No: Date Filed: 

INSTRUCTIONS:  File the original and one copy of this charge form in the appropriate PERB regional office (see PERB 
Regulation 32075), with proof of service attached to each copy. Proper filing includes concurrent service and proof of service of 
the charge as required by PERB Regulation 32615(c). All forms are available from the regional offices or PERB's website at 
www.perb.ca.gov.  If more space is needed for any item on this form, attach additional sheets and number items. 

IS THIS AN AMENDED CHARGE? YES If so, Case No. NO 

1. CHARGING PARTY: EMPLOYEE EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION  EMPLOYER PUBLIC1 

a. Full name:

b. Mailing address:

c. Telephone number:

d. Name and title of
person filing charge:
Telephone number:

E-mail Address:

Fax No.: 

e. Bargaining unit(s)
involved:

2. CHARGE FILED AGAINST: (mark one only) EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION  EMPLOYER 

a. Full name:

b. Mailing address:

c. Telephone number:

d. Name and title of
agent to contact:
Telephone number:

E-mail Address:

Fax No.: 

3. NAME OF EMPLOYER (Complete this section only if the charge is filed against an employee organization.)

a. Full name:

b. Mailing address:

4. APPOINTING POWER: (Complete this section only if the employer is the State of California.  See Gov. Code, § 18524.)

a. Full name:

b. Mailing address:

c. Agent:

1 An affected member of the public may only file a charge relating to an alleged public notice violation, pursuant to Government Code
section 3523, 3547, 3547.5, or 3595, or Public Utilities Code section 
99569. 
PERB-61 (4/3/2020) 

SEE REVERSE SIDE 

Service Employees International Union, Local 1000

1808 14th Street, Sacramento, CA  95811

(916) 554-1279

Anne M. Giese, Chief Counsel agiese@seiu1000.org

(916) 554-1279 (916) 554-1292

17

California Department of Human Resources

1515 S Street, North Building, Suite 500, Sacramento, CA  95811

(916) 324-0512

Frolan Aguiling, Chief Counsel frolan.aguiling@calhr.ca.gov

(916) 324-0512 (916) 323-4723

California Department of Public Health

PO Box 997377, MS 0500, Sacramento, CA  95899-7377
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5. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Are the parties covered by an agreement containing a grievance procedure which ends in binding arbitration? 

Yes _______ No _________ 

6. STATEMENT OF CHARGE

a. The charging party hereby alleges that the above-named respondent is under the jurisdiction of: (check one)

Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA) (Gov. Code, § 3540 et seq.) 

Ralph C. Dills Act (Gov. Code, § 3512 et seq.) 

Higher Education Employer-Employee Relations Act (HEERA) (Gov. Code, § 3560 et seq.) 

Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) (Gov. Code, § 3500 et seq.) 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority Transit Employer-Employee Relations Act (TEERA) 
(Pub. Utilities Code, § 99560 et seq.) 

Trial Court Employment Protection and Governance Act (Trial Court Act) (Article 3; Gov. Code, § 71630 – 
71639.5) 

Trial Court Interpreter Employment and Labor Relations Act (Court Interpreter Act) (Gov. Code, § 71800 et seq.) 

b. The specific Government or Public Utilities Code section(s), or PERB regulation section(s) alleged to have been violated is/are:

c. For MMBA, Trial Court Act and Court Interpreter Act cases, if applicable, the specific local rule(s) alleged to have been violated
is/are (a copy of the applicable local rule(s) MUST be attached to the charge):

d. Provide a clear and concise statement of the conduct alleged to constitute an unfair practice including, where known, the time and
place of each instance of respondent’s conduct, and the name and capacity of each person involved.  This must be a statement of
the facts that support your claim and not conclusions of law.  A statement of the remedy sought must also be provided.  (Use and
attach additional sheets of paper if necessary.)

DECLARATION 

I declare under penalty of perjury that I have read the above charge and that the statements herein are true and 
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief and that this declaration was executed on ____________________________ 

(Date) 
at . 

(City and State) 

(Type or Print Name)             (Signature) 

Title, if any: ______________________________________________________ 

Mailing address:  _________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Telephone Number:  _______________________________ E-Mail Address:  _______________________________________ 

PERB-61 (4/3/2020) 

3519 (a), (b), (c) 

[SEE ATTACHED]

08/28/2020

Sacramento, California

Anne M. Giese

Chief Counsel

1808 14th Street, Sacramento, CA  95811

(916) 554-1279 agiese@seiu1000.org
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STATEMENT OF THE CHARGE 

SEIU Local I 000 is the exclusive bargaining representative for State Bargaining Unit 17. The 
most recent Memorandum of Understanding between the State and Local 1000 was entered into 
for the period January 2020 through June 2023. 

After providing notice to the Union, the California Department of Public Health and the Union 
agreed to meet and confer concerning a major job duty change and effective restructuring of the 
Health Facility Evaluator Nurses (HFEN) duties after the COVID-19 pandemic struck. When 
the Union objected to the job duty changes on a number of grounds, rather than complete the 
bargaining process, CDPH abdicated its bargaining obligation and unilaterally implemented the 
changes in violation of the Dills Act. 

It is not possible to overstate the need for the bargaining over job duties to be completed 
pursuant to legal requirements. At the meet and confer table, the State heard the conditions 
affecting HFENs whose jobs are thrown into turmoil due to the CDPH's intentional disregard of 
the legal and nursing standards requirements under which the HFENs must operate. This 
includes but is not limited to: 

• California Health & Safety Code§ 1417.3, 
• the 1987 Nursing Home Reform Act (42 U.S.C. § 1395i-3), and 
• the Nurse Practice Act. 

Nevertheless, CDPH ignored and rejected valid concerns in favor of an immediate and excessive 
reliance on HFENs as a staffing solution during a pandemic to repair the broken public health 
standards at many Skilled Nursing Facilities, some of which have allowed COVID-19 to take 
many lives. This unilateral approach is illegal, unsafe and defies nursing standards. 

On Thursday, July 9, 2020, the parties met regarding the CDPH notice of its intent to shift the 
focus of the HFEN workforce toward education and infection prevention in Skilled Nursing 
Facilities. (Exhibit 1) The Union conveyed its many objections regarding management's 
proposed change to the Duty Statement. (Exhibit 2) Management even agreed that the duty 
statement could have been written more clearly, and committed to revising the duty statement. 

On August 4, 2020, the Union met with CDPH about the outstanding notice. CDPH provided a 
second revised duty statement. (Exhibit 3) The parties agreed to continue the meet and confer 
process and scheduled another meeting as many outstanding questions and objections still need 
to be resolved. For example, the Union argued in detail that this change and new duty statement 
departed from the job specifications and violated the law, citing California Health & Safety Code 
§ 1417.3, the 1987 Nursing Home Reform Act (42 U.S.C. § 1395i-3), and the Nurse Practice 
Act. All of these violations could jeopardize the HFENs' nursing licenses. Despite these crucial 
concerns directly conflicting with the job duty proposals, CDPH claimed there was a Department 
of Consumer Affairs (DCA) ruling regarding the legal issues at hand. However, when pressed, 
CDPH could not convey the details and did not provide a copy. CDPH said that they did not 
have an official response to the legal arguments at that time. 
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Additionally, in the second revised duty statement, CDPH demanded that the incumbent HFEN 
"Provides instruction, and technical assistance for facility leadership and their staff regarding 
state and federal regulations." To ensure HFENs followed legal, and scope of practice 
requirements, the Union demanded manageme.nt to define the terms "instruction" and "technical 
assistance" as used above, and to clarify what they meant by that statement. CDPH responded 
cavalierly that it was obvious, and had no additional answer. 

Also to protect the HFENs' licenses, the Union demanded clarity on the job expectations, to 
protect the clear line drawn by the legislature concerning conflict of interest issues that would 
have HFENs perform duties that would normally be performed by consultants, while at the same 
time engaging in enforcement activities. (See, California Health & Safety Code§ 1417.3) 

The Union demanded that CDPH remove the new job duty requiring HFENs to "conduct post
survey activities, including reviewing health care facility plans of corrections." Reviewing health 
care facility plans is a duty that management usually performs. 

The Union demanded an explanation of the operational need to substantially alter the duty 
statement based on a temporary emergency. CDPH had no valid explanation. Conflicting with its 
own notice, CDPH also stated that there is a duration to this duty statement (8-12 months), but 
this is subject to change as the external COVID environment changes. 

The parties agreed to a follow up meeting - scheduled for September 1st - to address the above 
notices. The parties have neither finished negotiating over the notices, nor agreed to any duty 
statement. 

On August 24th, management sent the Union a 3rd revised duty statement (Exhibit 4) that 
incorporated some changes. Regarding the 3rd Revised Duty Statement, there remain outstanding 
questions from the previous meeting on August 4th. 

Presently, as of this date, management is rejecting the need to complete the meet and confer, to 
address the legal violations, and is now unilaterally demanding that employees sign a new duty 
statement even though the parties have not yet finished their Meet & Confer. (Exhibit 5) 

Due to the state's ongoing recalcitrance to complete bargaining and find a resolution that upholds 
legal requirements to protect the careers and licenses of HFEN s, its unilateral action constitutes 
an unfair practice. 

ARGUMENT 

Unilateral Change of Prohibited Subjects of Bargaining 

"The rule in California is well settled: [an employer' s] unilateral change in a matter within the 
scope of representation is a per se violation of the duty to meet and confer in good faith." 
(California State Employees Association v. Public Employment Relations Bd. (1996) 51 
Cal.App.4th 923, 934-93 5.) Repudiation of a provision in the parties' MOU is a per se unilateral 
change. (Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (2012) PERB Dec. No. 2231-M.) 

I 
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PERB has found that unilateral actions are disfavored because they destabilize employer
employee affairs, denigrate the representative's negotiating power and ability to perform as an 
effective bargaining agent in the eyes of employees, undermine exclusivity, and denigrate 
statutory sanctions for negotiations. (San Mateo Community College District ( 1979) PERB Dec. 
No. 94, 3 PERC Para. 10080.) 

Because CDPH is unilaterally abandoning bargaining, understood and agreed to by the Parties, it 
is committing an unfair labor practice. Such changes have a continuing impact upon the tenns 
and conditions of the employment of BU 17 members. Unlawful unilateral changes have a 
"generalized impact or continuing effect" on the terms and conditions of employment. In 
considering whether CDPH's conduct has a generalized effect, it is useful to note that the 
changes referenced above are not merely one-time breaches of a contract - which have 
previously been found not to constitute an unlawful unilateral change. Instead, PERB has noted 
that under existing precedent, "a breach of contract amounts to a unilateral change where the 
party in breach asserts that the contract authorizes its conduct" or where the breach represents a 
"change in policy that is generally applicable to future situations." 

Moreover, CDPH cannot unilaterally impose proposals that are illegal. (See, AFSCME v County 
of San Diego Decision 272 lM): 

Illegal subjects of bargaining include "matters prohibited by external law or public policy 
and may not be negotiated or included in a collective bargaining agreement, even if the 
parties were to agree to do so. Generally, where a proposal would deviate from an 
inflexible standard set by external law, it may be characterized as a prohibited, "illegal" 
or nonnegotiable subject of bargaining." (San Mateo City School Dist. v. Public 
Employment Relations Bd. (1983) 33 Cal.3d 850, 864-865.) 

Because they cannot be included in a collective bargaining agreement, prohibited subjects may 
not serve as the lawful basis for a declaration of impasse nor be imposed by the employer upon 
reaching a deadlock in negotiations, even assuming good-faith bargaining and exhaustion of any 
applicable impasse resolution procedures. (Berkeley Unified School District (2012) PERB 
Decision No. 2268 (Berkeley), pp. 3-9, esp. fn. 3.) 

The Union notified CDPH of the legal disputes - concerning the assignment of education, public 
health training and infectious disease control duties to HFENs whose defined role is to survey 
SNFs for compliance with legal standards. Nevertheless, CDPH flouted these barriers and 
proceeded to unilateral implementation of duties that crossed legal boundaries. The legal issues 
are outlined briefly as follows: 

1. Health & Safety Code 1417.3 requires separation of surveying and licensing from 
the training and technical assistant unit 

In 2001, CDPH proposed an amendment to existing law found in the Long-Term Care, Health, 
Safety, and Security Act of 1973 to specifically require statewide training on effective facility 
practices and training on topics related to the provision of quality of care and quality of life for 

PERB Received
10/26/21 15:56 PM
PERB Received
10/26/21 15:56 PM



STATEMENT OF THE CHARGE 
PAGE4 

facility residents. However, as enacted, this law expressly required this new training unit to be 
sepai;ated from the survey and enforcement process, which already existed at the time. 

H&S 1417.3 - The department shall promote quality of care and quality oflife for 
residents, clients, and patients in long-term health care facility services through specific 
activities that include, but are not limited to, all of the following: 

(a) Research and evaluation of innovative facility resident care models. 

(b) ( 1) Provision of statewide training on effective facility practices. 

(2) Training also shall include topics related to the provision of quality of care and 
quality of life for facility residents. The topics for training shall be identified by the 
department through a periodic survey. The curriculum for the training provided under this 
paragraph shall be developed in consultation with representatives from provider 
associations, consumer associations, and others, as deemed appropriate by the state 
department. 

( c) The establishment of separate units to respond to facility requests for technical 
assistance regarding licensing and certification requirements, compliance with federal 
and state standards, and related operational issues. 

( d) State employees providing technical assistance to facilities pursuant to this section 
are only required to report violations they discover during the provision of the assistance 
to the appropriate district office if the violations constitute an immediate and serious 
threat to the health and welfare of, or have resulted in actual harm to, patients, residents, 
or clients of the facility. 

(e) The state department shall measure facility satisfaction and the effectiveness of the 
technical assistance provided pursuant to subdivision ( c ). 

(f) No person employed in the technical assistance or training units under subdivisions 
(b) and ( c) shall also participate in the licensing, surveying, or direct regulation of 
facilities. 

(g) This section shall not diminish the department's ongoing survey and enforcement 
process. 

No change to the Duty Statement can be made without addressing the separation of duties 
required by this law. Notwithstanding the Union's repeated reference to this law, CDPH was 
determined to proceed regardless of it. This intentional disregard of the law jeopardizes the 
employees who are forced to choose between adhering to the duties required or violating the plan 
language of the law. 
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2. The HFEN class specification specifies an enforcement role 

The HFEN class specification is based on and reflects this separation of duties found in law. 
Importantly, the class specification does not refer to training, educating or consulting. Instead, it 
does specify the primary role is enforcement for the purpose of patient care, which it does by 
inspection, investigation, survey, and evaluation for compliance with state and federal 
requirement. Specifically, the specification states: 

Incumbents conduct inspections, investigations, surveys, and evaluations of health 
facilities for conformity with licensing and certification requirements of the Department 
of Health Services and for compliance with State and Federal laws, rules, and 
regulations relating to medical care. Advise health facilities administrators and 
community agencies regarding State health facilities inspection, licensing, and 
certification programs. Primary responsibility is for enforcement of State and Federal 
laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to areas affecting total patient care such as 
nursing, physician, restorative, pharmacy, social, dental, and related services. 

When the proposed duty statement is not reasonably consistent with job specification, it is 
considered misallocated work. Changing job duties contrary to the class specification violates the 
merit principle and the classification system. CalHR is empowered to ensure that no one is 
"assigned to perform the duties of any class other than that to which his or her position is 
allocated." (Gov. 19818.8) However, CDPH seems to have no concerns about putting the cart 
before the horse- mandating job duties changes without regard to the Long-Term Care, Health, 
Safety, and Security Act amendments of 2001 or the classification specifications. 

3. CDPH Demands HFENs to serve as an Onsite Infectious Disease Advisor and 
Trainer 

The infectious disease role is outside the HFENs scope of practice and class specification 
requirements. CDPH made a very specific demand regarding infection control: 

High fatality rates, fast infection spread rates, and lack of consistency with infection 
control precautions have exposed an immediate need for a sustainable presence for 
oversight and re-education. In order to create a culture of safety and regulatory 
compliance, it has been deemed necessary to the expand the HFEN's infection prevention 
responsibilities in the SNFs. HFENs will be responsible for providing technical 
assistance, education, and training on plans of correction 

Generally, registered nurses are trained in infection and disease control and are expected to 
follow employer procedures to reduce and control the spread of infection in their practice. As 
RNs, HFENs have this background. HFENs currently must survey facilities for infection control 
for the purpose of licensing and certification, as required by federal law: 
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(3) Sanitary and infection control and physical environment A skilled nursing facility 
must-

(A) establish and maintain an infection control program designed to provide a safe, 
sanitary, and comfortable environment in which residents reside and to help prevent the 
development and transmission of disease and infection, and 

(B) be designed, constructed, equipped, and maintained in a manner to protect the health 
and safety of residents, personnel, and the general public. 42 USC 1395i-3(d) 

Checking a SNF to ensure it has a sanitation and infection control program is vastly different 
than being an onsite expert advisor for infection and disease control and to provide training to 
staff and management. To impose this duty - for such a serious and unique specialty - in the 
midst of a pandemic is foolhardy. With the demands of the current COVID crisis throughout 
SNFs, to insist that HFENs take time out of their existing duties for training in the specialty and 
training to become the trainers, ignores the stark realities of the role of infectious disease control 
experts. It is, after all, a certified specialty in the medical field. In addition, it falls more directly 
under the specialty of Public Health Nurse. State law defines this role: 

B&P 2818. 

(a) The Legislature recognizes that public health nursing is a service of crucial 
importance for the health, safety, and sanitation of the population in all of California's 
communities. These services currently include, but are not limited to: 

(1) Control and prevention of communicable disease. 

(2) Promotion of maternal, child, and adolescent health. 

(3) Prevention of abuse and neglect of children, elders, and spouses. 

( 4) Outreach screening, case management, resource coordination and assessment, and 
delivery and evaluation of care for individuals, families, and communities. 

(b) The Legislature also finds that conflicting definitions of "public health nurse" have 
been created by various state and local agencies within California. The Legislature also 
finds that the public is harmed by the conflicting usage of the title "public health nurse" 
and lack of consistency between the use of the term and the qualifications required in 
state law and in administrative regulations. Therefore, the Legislature finds that the 
public interest would be served by determining the conditions for the legitimate use by 
registered nurses of a title which includes the term "public health nurse." 

( c) No individual shall hold himself or herself out as a public health nurse or use a title 
which includes the term "public health nurse" unless that individual is in possession of a 
valid California public health nurse certificate issued pursuant to this article. 
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(d) No employer subject to regulation by Section 602 of the Health and Safety Code shall 
hold out any employee to be a public health nurse or grant a title to any employee 
including the term "public health nurse" unless that employee holds a valid California 
public health nurse certificate pursuant to this article. 

CDPH is blurring the lines between HFENs and public health nurse - violating the requirements 
set forth in law. In fact, CDPH is imposing the requirement for HFENs to be onsite public health 
nurses for the facilities for the purpose of controlling an infectious disease that is spreading 
across the nation and world at an exponential rate. CDPH already employs Public Health Nurses, 
which is a more appropriate classification for this work. Indeed, the class specification for PHN 
includes "giving instruction for the care of patients and application of procedures designed to 
prevent the spread of communicable diseases" among other duties. 

4. Nursing policies cannot be developed by non-medical professionals. 

Finally, throughout the weeks of these negotiations, CDPH continues to have nursing policies 
written and developed by non-medical professionals over the objections of the Union. As band
aids in a medical crisis, CDPH continues to err by issuing quick fixes written by bureaucrats 
rather than sound nursing policy developed by medical professionals. This violates state law as 
follows: 

Business and Professions Code Section 2725: "(e) No state agency other than the board 
may define or interpret the practice of nursing for those licensed pursuant to the 
provisions of this chapter or develop standardized procedures or protocols pursuant to 
this chapter, unless so authorized by this chapter, or specifically required under state or 
federal statute. "State agency" includes every state office, officer, department, division, 
bureau, board, authority, and commission." 

CDPH has failed to establish that the Duty Statement and intended scope of practices was 
developed by a licensed professionals in medicine, nursing and public health. 

The changes detailed herein constitute fundamental alterations in the terms and conditions of 
employment, in the legally mandated scope of duties, and meanwhile CDPH is implementing 
these changes without completing the meet and confer process initiated by the parties pursuant to 
its notice. This breach in particular represents an overarching change that it is a "per se" 
violation of the Dills Act. 

Interference 

An employer engages in illegal interference when that employer takes actions "to interfere with, 
restrain, or coerce employees because of their exercise of' protected rights. Interference occurs 
where the employer's conduct "tends to or does result in some harm to employee [or the 
exclusive representative's] rights." (Carlsbad Unified School Dist. (1978) PERB Dec. No. 89.) 
Typically, these cases involve obstruction of rights through threats, intimidation or similar 
actions. CDPH's conduct amounted to illegal interference when it punished employees by 
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unilaterally changing the implementation deadline of the new duty statement and continued to 
mandate overtime despite functional resolutions. 

In an unfair practice case involving an allegation of interference, a violation will be found where 
the employer's acts interfere or tend to interfere with the exercise of protected rights and the 
employer is unable to justify its actions by proving operational necessity. (Carlsbad Unified 
School District (1979) PERB Decision No. 89.) In an interference case, it is not necessary for the 
charging party to show that the respondent acted with an unlawful motivation. (Regents of the 
University of California (1983) PERB Decision No. 305-H.)" 

It is clear from the facts set forth above that CDPH's conduct targeted the HFENs with illegal, 
unsafe and unsound job duties, abandoned the commitment to protect employees' nursing 
licensures, and fundamentally undermined the meet and confer efforts with the Union occuning 
throughout the summer. This conduct put a target on the Union's back, that takes seriously the 
guarantee to protect employees from illegal and improper job duties, that worked for weeks 
throughout the pandemic to achieve protections, and that also engaged and informed workers 
toward achieving the goal of sound and legal job duties during this public health crisis. 
Consequently, the timing of the CDPH's abandonment of bargaining - very specifically 
occurring during meet and confer negotiations, comes at a time where it is intended to cause as 
much damage as possible to the Union's strength at the table to protect the HFENs. CDPH 
targeted this very specific union activity - in an effort to diminish the status and the rights of the 
Union. CDPH has chosen a path of unilateral change and flouted the Union's efforts to obtain 
agreement at the table. This conduct amounts to interference with the Union's rights to represent 
its members, and the members' rights to have Union representation. This conduct was direct and 
specific in regards to the Union's power and authority at the table. It was intended to chill 
support of the Union during the pandemic. 

CONCLUSION 

CDPH may not legally use HFENs as a public health staffing solution to repair the broken 
infection control issues that exist at Skilled Nursing Facilities. Bureaucrats thrive on so-called 
quick fixes that provide fodder for press releases and sound bites. 

By the acts and conduct described above, the State interfered with the rights of bargaining unit 
employees being represented by Local 1000 in violation of Government Code section 3519(a). 

By the acts and conduct described above, the State interfered with the rights of Local 1000 to 
represent its bargaining unit employees in violation of Government Code section 3519(b). 

By the acts and conduct described above, the State failed to meet and confer in good faith with 
Local 1000 in violation of Government Code section 3519(c). 
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REMEDIES 

Local 1000 requests that the PERB order the following: 

• Cease and desist unilateral changes and interference; 
• Return employees to status quo ante; 
• Provide adequate notice of changes within scope; 
• Bargain in good faith with Local 1000 representatives; 
• Any other appropriate relief; and 
• That any such PERB order be posted at worksite bulletin boards throughout the State of 

California where Local 1000 represented employees work. 
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From: Terry, Sharron@CDPH <Sharron.Terry@cdph.ca.gov> 
Sent: Friday, June 12, 2020 5:11 PM 
To: Walker, Yvonne 
Cc: Rivera, Kristanna@CDPH <Kristanna.Rivera@cdph .ca.gov> 
Subject: Infection Prevention Case Management 

Good Afternoon: 

Due to the State of Emergency and COVID-19 response, the California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH) had to shift the primary focus of the Health Facility Evaluator 
Nurse (HFEN) workforce to infection prevention education in Skilled Nursing Facilities 
(SNFs) and other facilities regulated by the Department of Social Services. 

The COVID-19 response has highlighted gaps in quality and safety at our SNFs. High 
fatality rates, fast infection spread rates, and lack of consistency with infection control 
precautions have exposed an immediate need for a sustainable presence for oversight 
and re-education. In order to create a culture of safety and regulatory compliance, it 
has been deemed necessary to the expand the HFEN's infection prevention 
responsibilities in the SNFs. HFENs will be responsible for providing technical 
assistance, education, and training on plans of correction and unresolved action items 
during daily onsite facility visits. Depending on geographical distance of facilities, this 
may include video calls in addition to site visits. The CDPH will provide masks, gowns , 
gloves, and safety glasses or face shields to all HFENs for site visits and has an 
adequate supply of personal protective equipment (PPE) for all HFENs. 

The anticipated effective date for implementation is on or about June 15, 2020, and will 
continue for 8-12 months. Attached is a copy of the updated HFEN duty statement. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Thank you, 

Sharron Terry, Labor Relations Specialist 
Labor Relations 
Human Resources Division 
Department of Public Health 
(916) 552-9937 
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Stale: of California - Health and Human Services Agency· 

Employe·e Name: 

California Department of Public Health 

NEW" tff~ ~J 
-------=f;>-blT1f S-FATtt+&N'I 

DUTY STATEMENT 

---- --------- -- ---- ----------------··-·--·---·--· _ J1£D 6._f_G_{) __ $"~12 _ _:_2o 
Classification: Position Number: 
Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse 580-XXX-8011-XXX ·---------- ______________________ ,, _____ _ 
Working Title: Work Location: 

Nurse Surve}:'.or ----- ------- - - +--- ------------------- -
Collective Bargaining Unit: Tenurerrime Base: 
17 Permanent/Full-Time 
Center/Office/Division: Branch/Section/Unit: 

-~e!:!_~! for H~~!!h Care- _g~ality -·-:-:::-.. ______ .. _____ OJ!l~g_!_fi e!_c:l _ _Qper~-~OI]_~-·-----,----- .. -----------~·-.. ·-·-

All employees shall possess the general qualifications, as described in California Code of 
Regulations Title 2, Section 172, which include, but are not limited to integrity, honesty, 
dependability, thoroughness, accuracy, good judgment, initiative, 'fesourcefulness, and the ability to 
work cooperatively with others. · 

This position requires the incumbent to maintain consistent and regular attendance; communicate 
effectively (orally and in writing) in dealing with the public and/or other employees; develop and 
maintain knowledge and skill related to specific tasks, methodologies, materials, tools, and 
equipment; complete assignm~nts in a timely and efficient manner; and, adhere to departmental 

'policies and procedures. 

Com·petencie.s 

The competencies required for this position are found on the classification specification for the 
classification noted above. Classification specifications are located on the Cal ifornia Department of 
Human Resource's Job Descriptions webpage. 

_ ~2'ob, St1mmarn 'i· · --.;:· · : · . . • - - -_ : r· · "~-~. -Y . . · - · · · 

1
. ht 

This. position supports the California Department of Public Health's (CDPH) mission and strategic 1~8~~ 
plan oy conducting inspections, investigations, surveys, and evaluations of health care facilities and · J,· 
agencies fqr conformity with state licensi~g and fe?eral certific~tion require~ents for compliance wit (JJQ(i (~ 
state and federal laws, rules, and regulations relating to ~he delivery of medical care. Advises health 
care facility administrators and .community agencies regarding state health care facilities inspection, 
lic,en~ing, and certification programs. Primary responsibility for uniform application and enforcement 
·oo~tate and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to areas affecting total patient care such as 
'nursing, physician, restorative, pharmacy, social, environmental ;:md related services. Extensive local 
and statewide travel will be required. This osition..-ma e · · ht sta s, evenin , weekenCf.C:>r 
~- The Incumbent m t a · · r's license a ood drivin record and is 
expecte to drive the car safely. Incumbent will travel and will be required to wear a ro riate Personal 

- protection Egu1pmen sue as: . ask, gown, gloves, safety glasses or face shield during site visits to 
health care facilities. -

The incumbent works under the genercil direction of the Health Facilities Evaluator II S1,1pervisor. 

! :;:. ' . ~ ·. ,··, " ' ' < ¥<C" ,..._ .. __ . .,....,. 

r.nPl-i.nAR {f;/1A\ P::.nA 1 nf ~ 
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J II I 
tJ r f t1 r t't c.~ J w.ty Sfu~ California Department of Public Health . ...r-- Bte.~ !Go '\- S of'ft>Sa.. 1-lJ '/ ·t'n 

D Conflict of lntere~t (COi) · 

.D 
D 

!3ackgrot,md ~heck and/or Firgerprinting Clearance 

Medical Clearance 
. ' . 

IZ] Travel: Mandatory - Minimum of 50% 

D Bilingual: Pass a State written and/or verbal proficiency exam in 

IZl License/Certification: RN License 

D Other: 

Es~ential Functions (including pEfr~entage ·oftime) · · , ,,. ,;· .. 
,,, IA ~0% COnducts"fn-de.pth "surveys a(Skilled N-ursing Fa'cilities (SNFs a"nd other health 
~ • :--- care facilities, individually' or as part o a earn, e ermine compliance with state 

licensing and federal certification requirements. Conducts s~, 
ins ections. This osition may-require overn'i ht sta s, evening, weekend.i_ or 

holiday surve s. Conducts an ocuments interviews with health care facilities' 
-· s1 ents, staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews res iden~ 
medical files for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information 
for @gulatory and legal action while ensuring patient confidentiality. Independently, 
·or as part of ~am; makes a determination of health care facilities' compliance 
with state and federal laws and regulations based on observations, interviews and 
record reviews. Conducts t-surve activities including reviewin and 
respondin to health car facilit lans of corrections. Con uc s · · s at 
health care ac1 ities to veri facilit as correc cited deficiencies. Prepares 
wr en comprehensive narrative reports of findings including conclusions and 
recommendations and prepares written statements of deficiencies when deemed 
aµ,propriate. 

25% --

f'nO!-l ?<IRA / 1'. /1 Q\ 

In response to complaints submitted to the CDPH regarding patient care and 
health care delivery in licensed health care facilities, the incumbent travels to and 

.. conducts investigations. at facilities, documenting fully for regulatory and legal 
actions all evidence relating to non-compliance. Conducts and documents 
interviews with the complainant, relevant witnesses, health care" facilities' patients, 
staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews resident medical files 
for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information while ensuring 
patient confidentiality~ Independently makes a determination of health care 
facilities' compliance with state and federal regulations based on observations, 
interviews and record reviews. Prepares written comprehensive narrative reports 

PAnA? nf :'I 
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5% 
~ 

5% 

California Departipenl of Public Health 

of investigations including conclusions and recommendations, and prepares 
written statements of deficiencies when deemed appropriate. 

Develops and presents both written and verbal testimony to provide support for 
civil monetary penalties at informal conferences, citation review conferences, 
evidentiary hearings, state and federal hearings, informal dispute resolutions, 
municipal or superior court proceedings, and arbitration procedures. Responds to 
these legal actions as an expert witness on matters relating to state and federal 
laws and regulations pertaining to patient care and healthcare delivery system. 

Advises and assists health care facility administrators in matters relating to the 
state requirements for inspections, licensing, construction, and operation of health 
care facilities. 

Marginal Functions (including percentage of time) 
5% Other duties as required, including, but not limited to, collecting data required for 

special studies and preparing licensing and complaint packets for staff. 

I certify this duty statement represents an I' have read and understand the duties arid 
accu.rate d.~scription oft.he essential fun~tions fequirem~nts l~sted a~ove, and am able to perform 
of this pos1t1on. I have discussed the duties and ~hese duties with or without reasonable 
have provided a copy of this duty statement to .

1

accommodation. (If you believe reasonable 
the employee named above. 

1
accommodation may be necessary. or if unsure of a 
need for reasonable accommodation, inform the 
lhiring supervisor.) . 

Supervisor's Name: 

----
Supervisor's Signature 

' Date 

jDate 

J_Employee's Name: 

j Employee's Signature 
I I 

HRB Use Only: I Date I 
_A~pp~r_ov_e_d_B_~: --~~--~~--~-_J 

r.nPH ?:>.AR f!i/1 Q\ 

I Date 

__ · _ f _a_te __ _ 
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Second Revised DUTY STATEMENT as of 8.4.20 

Employee Name: 

Classification: 
Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse 
Working Title: 
Nurse Surveyor 
Collective Bargaining Unit: 
17 
Center/Office/Division: 
Center for Health Care Quality 

Position Number: 
580-XXX-8011-XXX 
Work Location: 

Tenure/Time Base: 
Permanent/Full-Time 

Branch/Section/Unit: 
Office of Field Operations 

California Department of Public Health 

All employees shall possess the general qualifications, as described in California Code of 
Regulations Title 2, Section 172, which include, but are not limited to integrity, honesty, 
dependability, thoroughness, accuracy, good judgment, initiative, resourcefulness, and the ability to 
work cooperatively with others. 

This position requires the incumbent to maintain consistent and regular attendance; communicate 
effectively (orally and in writing) in dealing with the public and/or other employees; develop and 
maintain knowledge and skill related to specific tasks, methodologies, materials, tools, and 
equipment; complete assignments in a timely and efficient manner; and, adhere to departmental 
policies and procedures. 

Competencies 

The competencies required for this position are found on the classification specification for the 
classification noted above. Classification specifications are located on the California Department of 
Human Resource's Job Descriptions webpage. 

This position supports the California Department of Public Health's (CDPH) mission and strategic 
plan by conducting inspections, investigations, surveys, and evaluations of health care facilities and 
agencies for conformity with state licensing and federal certification requirements for compliance with 
state and federal laws, rules, and regulations relating to the delivery of medical care. Advises health 
care facility administrators and community agencies regarding state health care facilities inspection, 
licensing, and certification programs. Primary responsibility for uniform application and enforcement 
of state and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to areas affecting total patient care such as 
nursing, physician, restorative, pharmacy, social, environmental and related services. Extensive local 
and statewide travel will be required. This position may require overnight stays, evening, weekend, or 
holiday surveys. The Incumbent must have a valid state driver's license, a good driving record and is 
expected to drive the car safely wh-ile driving on state business. Incumbent will travel and wiiee 
required to 'wear appropriate Personal Protective Equipment ac::c:;ording to"gu-idance requirem~nts,, 
such as: Mask, gown, gloves, safety glasses or face shield during site visits to health care facilities. 

The incumbent works under the general direction of the Health Facilities Evaluator II Supervisor. 

Special" Requirements 

CDPH 2388 (5/19) Page 1 of 3 
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California Department of Public Health 

IZ] Conflict of Interest (COi) 

D Background Check and/or Fingerprinting Clearance 

D Medical Clearance 

IZ] Travel: Mandatory - Minimum of 50% 

D Bilingual: Pass a State written and/or verbal proficiency exam in 

1ZJ License/Certification: RN License 

D Other: 

· Essential Fu-nctions (including percentage of time) 
35% 

30% 

25% 

CDPH 2388 (5/19) 

Conducts in-depth surveys at Sk#_led Nursing Facilities (SNFs) qrid other: health 
care facilities, individually or as part of a team, to determine compliance with state 
licensing and federal certification requirements. Conducts surveys, investigations, 
and inspections. Thi~ position F!lay require overnight stays, eve.fling, we9kend, or 
_holic:lay suryeys;: Conducts and documents interviews with health care facilities' 
residents, staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews resident 
medical files for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information 
for regulatory and legal action while ensuring patient confidentiality. Independently, 
or as part of a team, makes a determination of health care facilities' compliance 
with state and federal laws and regulations based on observations, interviews and 
record reviews. Conducts post-survey activities including reviewing a-AG 
'responding to_ health care facility plans of corrections. Conducts follow-up visits at 
health care facilities to verify facility has corrected cited deficiencies. Prepares 
written comprehensive narrative reports of findings including conclusions and 
recommendations and prepares written statements of deficiencies when deemed 
appropriate. 

The Incumbent will be the liaison and primary contact for the California Department 
of Public Health to assist health care facilities with the regulatory actions and 
processes. Provides ponsisJent . fuedbaok,instn.idion ; and .. edu.cationtechnical 
a-ssistance for facility leadership and their staff regarding state and federal 
regulations. Depending on geographic location, the surveyor may be onsite daily, 
ffiaRY times a week, am;l conduct freq4ent video calls as check ins. _The incumbent 
will not only address infection control but will also provide quality and safety 
compliance oversight to :$.NFs 9nd oth~ healthcare facilities. Advises and assists 
health care facility administrators in matters relating to the state requirements for 
inspections, licensing, construction, and operation of health care facilities. 

In response to complaints submitted to the CDPH regarding patient care and 
health care delivery in licensed health care facilities, the incumbent travels to and 
conducts investigations at facilities, documenting fully for regulatory and legal 
actions all evidence relating to non-compliance. Conducts and documents 
interviews with the complainant, relevant witnesses, health care facilities' patients, 
staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews resident medical files 
for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information while ensuring 
patient confidentiality. Independently makes a determination of health care 
facilities' compliance with state and federal regulations based on observations, 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 

5% 

California Department of Public Health 

interviews and record reviews . Prepares written comprehensive narrative reports 
of investigations including conclusions and recommendations, and prepares 
written statements of deficiencies when deemed appropriate. 

Develops and presents both written and verbal testimony to provide support for 
civil monetary penalties at informal conferences, citation review conferences, 
evidentiary hearings, state and federal hearings, informal dispute resolutions, 
municipal or superior court proceedings, and arbitration procedures. Responds to 
these legal actions as an expert witness on matters relating to state and federal 
laws and regulations pertaining to patient care and healthcare delivery system. 

Advises and assists health care facility administrators in matters relating to the, 
state requirememts for inspections, licensing, construction, and operation of health 
,car~Q.. faqilities-:-

Marginal Functions (including percentage of time) 
5% Other duties as required, including, but not limited to, collecting data required for 

special studies and preparing licensing and complaint packets for staff. 

I certify this duty statement represents an I have read and understand the duties and 
accurate description of the essential functions requirements listed above, and am able to perform 
of this position. I have discussed the duties and hese duties with or without reasonable 
have provided a copy of this duty statement to accommodation. (If you believe reasonable 
the employee named above. accommodation may be necessary, or if unsure of a 

need for reasonable accommodation, inform the 
hiring supervisor.) 

Supervisor's Name: Date Employee's Name: Date 

Supervisor's Signature Date Employee's Signature Date 

HRB Use Only: Date 
Approved Bv: 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 

Employee Name: 

Classification: 
Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse 

Working Title: 
Nurse Surveyor 
Collective Bargaining Unit: 
17 
Center/Office/Division: 
Center for Health Care Quality 

DUTY STATEMENT 
3rd Revision sent 8.24.20 

Position Number: 
580-XXX-8011-XXX 
Work Location: 

Tenure/Time Base: 
Permanent/Full-Time 
Branch/Section/Unit: 
Office of Field Operations 

California Department of Public Health 

All employees shall possess the general qualifications, as described in California Code of 
Regulations Title 2, Section 172, which include, but are not limited to integrity, honesty, 
dependability, thoroughness, accuracy, good judgment, initiative, resourcefulness, and the ability to 
work cooperatively with others. 

This position requires the incumbent to maintain consistent and regular attendance; communicate 
effectively (orally and in writing) in dealing with the public and/or other employees; develop and 
maintain knowledge and skill related to specific tasks, methodologies, materials, tools, and 
equipment; complete assignments in a timely and efficient manner; and, adhere to departmental 
policies and procedures. 

}. Compet~ncies . 

The competencies required for this position are found on the classification specification for the 
classification noted above. Classification specifications are located on the California Department of 
Human Resource's Job Descriptions webpaqe. 

J.ob S'1mmary' 

This position supports the California Department of Public Health's (CDPH) mission and strategic 
plan by conducting inspections, investigations, surveys, and evaluations of health care facilities and 
agencies for conformity with state licensing and federal certification requirements for compliance with 
state and federal laws, rules, and regulations relating to the delivery of medical care. Advises health 
care facility administrators and community agencies regarding state health care facilities inspection, 
licensing, and certification programs. Primary responsibility for uniform application and enforcement 
of state and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to areas affecting total patient care such as 
nursing, physician, restorative, pharmacy, social, environmental and related services. Extensive local 
and statewide travel will be r~quired. This position may require overnight stays, evening, weekend, or 
holiday surveys. While dri.ving on sta~e business, the incumbent must have a valid state driver's 
license, a good driving record and is expected to drive the car safely. Incumbent will travel and wH+-be 
'required to 'wear appropriate Personal Protective Equipment acc,ordlng to' g'u!,9ance requirem~nts, · 
such as: Mask, gown, gloves, safety glasses or face shield during site visits to health care facilities. 

The incumbent works under the general direction of the Health Facilities Evaluator II Supervisor. 

Special · Requirements ·. · 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health 

~ Conflict of Interest (COi) 

D Background Check and/or Fingerprinting Clearance 

D Medical Clearance 

~ Travel: Mandatory - Minimum of 50% 

D Bilingual: Pass a State written and/or verbal proficiency exam in 

~ License/Certification: RN License 

D Other: 

Essential Functions (including percentage of time) 
35% 

30% 

25% 

CDPH 2388 (5/19) 

Conducts in-depth surveys at Skille_d Nursing facilitjes (SNFs) .and other health 
care facilities, individually or as part of a team, to determine compliance with state 
licensing and federal certification requirements. Conducts surveys, investigations, 
and inspections. This posl_tion may require overnight stays, evening, i.veekend, or 
~~ Conducts and documents interviews with health care facilities' 
residents, staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews resident 
medical files for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information 
for regulatory and legal action while ensuring patient confidentiality. Independently, 
or as part of a team, makes a determination of health care facilities' compliance 
with state and federal laws and regulations based on observations, interviews and 
record reviews. Conducts post-survey activities including reviewing am;t 
responding to health care facility plans of corrections. Conducts follow-up visits at 
health care facilities to verify facility has corrected cited deficiencies. Prepares 
written comprehensive narrative reports of findings including conclusions and 
recommendations and prepares written statements of deficiencies when deemed 
appropriate. 

The Incumbent will be the liaison and primary contact for the California Department 
of Public Health to assist health care facilities with the regulatory actions and 
processes. Provides consistent feedbaok,instruction, and educationtechnical 
assistan.c.e,. for facility leadership and their staff regarding state and federal 
'regulations. Dependi.rig on geograp.hic iocation, the surveyo·r may be onsite daily, 
many times a week, and conduct frequent ·video calls qS check ins. The incumbent 
will not only address infection control but will also provide quality and safety 
c_ompliarice oversight to SNFs ;rnd other healthcare facilities. Advises and assists 
health care facility administrators ~!ld staff in matters relating to the state ~md 
redera! requirements for inspections, licensing, construction, and operation of 
health care facilities. 

In response to complaints submitted to the CDPH regarding patient care and 
health care delivery in licensed health care facilities, the incumbent travels to and 
conducts investigations at facilities, documenting fully for regulatory and legal 
actions all evidence relating to non-compliance. Conducts and documents 
interviews with the complainant, relevant witnesses, health care facilities' patients, 
staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews resident medical files 
for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information while ensuring 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 

5% 

California Department of Public Health 

patient confidentiality. Independently makes a determination of health care 
facilities' compliance with state and federal regulations based on observations, 
interviews and record reviews. Prepares written comprehensive narrative reports 
of investigations including conclusions and recommendations, and prepares 
written statements of deficiencies when deemed appropriate. 

Develops and presents both written and verbal testimony to provide support for 
civil monetary penalties at informal conferences, citation review conferences, 
evidentiary hearings, state and federal hearings, informal dispute resolutions, 
municipal or superior court proceedings, and arbitration procedures. Responds to 
these legal actions as an expert witness on matters relating to state and federal 
laws and regulations pertaining to patient care and healthcare delivery system. 

Advises and assists health care faciilty administrators in matters . relating to .the 
state requirements for inspections, licensing, constn:1ction, and operation of tie.§lth' 
care facilities. 

Marginal Functions (inGluding percentage of time) 
5% Other duties as required, including, but not limited to, collecting data required for 

special studies and preparing licensing and complaint packets for staff. 

I certify this duty statement represents an I have read and understand the duties and 
accurate description of the essential functions requirements listed above, and am able to perform 
of this position. I have discussed the duties and hese duties with or without reasonable 
have provided a copy of this duty statement to accommodation. (If you believe reasonable 
the employee named above. accommodation may be necessary, or if unsure of a 

need for reasonable accommodation, inform the 
hiring supervisor.) 

Supervisor's Name: Date Employee's Name: Date 

Supervisor's Signature Date Employee's Signature Date 

HRD Use Only: Date 
Approved By: 

CDPH 2388 (5/19) Page 3 of 3 

PERB Received
10/26/21 15:56 PM
PERB Received
10/26/21 15:56 PM



Exhibit 5 

PERB Received
10/26/21 15:56 PM
PERB Received
10/26/21 15:56 PM



·-·--·-··-----·- -··--- -------·-·---·--- ---
From: Steinecker, Heidi@CDPH <Heidi.Steinecker@cdph.ca.gov> 
Serit: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 10:41 AM 
Subject: Early CHCQ Weekly Email 

Dear CHCQ staff, 

-·-·-·------- - - -·--- ·-----··· 

My apologies but I will not be joining today for our weekly All Staff Call, as I will be offline over the next week to spend 
some quality time with my family. I will be back next Wednesday, but encourage everyone to continue to rotate to have 
some time offline. Cassie will lead today's call. 

For Field Staff: 
- As a reminder, everyone entering facilities must complete their baseline testing by August 315

\ and then run in results 
to DMU. If you have questions, please reach out to DMU, or Jen Hill from our team. 

-I.have attached the final version of the new HFEN duty statement and want to thank the HFENs who had good input in 
making these final revisions. Please sign and send to your managers so we have the new copy on file. 

Thank you again for all the incredible work you are doing during the most incredible time. Next week, for our Heroes of 
the Week, I will go into more depth regarding the second annual CHCQ Transformational Leader Award. 

Heidi 

Heidi W. Steinecker 

Deputy Director 
Center for Health Care Quality (Cl!CQ), 
California Department of Public Health 

1 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 

Employee Name: 

Classification : 
Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse 
Working Title: 
Nurse Surveyor 
Collective Bargaining Unit: 
17 
Center/Office/Division: 
Center for Health Care Quality 

DUTY STATEMENT 

Position Number: 
580-XXX-8011-XXX 
Work Location: 

Tenure/Time Base: 
Permanent/Full-Time 
Branch/Section/Unit: 
Office of Field Operations 

California Department of Public Health 

All employees shall possess the general qualifications, as described in California Code of 
Regulations Title 2, Section 172, which include, but are not limited to integrity, honesty, 
dependability, thoroughness, accuracy, good judgment, initiative, resourcefulness, and the ability to 
work cooperatively with others. 

This position requires the incumbent to maintain consistent and regular attendance; communicate 
effectively (orally and in writing) in dealing with the public and/or other employees; develop and 
maintain knowledge and skill related to specific tasks, methodologies, materials, tools, and 
equipment; complete assignments in a timely and efficient manner; and, adhere to departmental 
policies and procedures. 

1 Competencies 

The competencies required for this position are found on the classification specification for the 
classification noted above. Classification specifications are located on the California Department of 
Human Resource's Job Descriptions webpage. 

, Job Summary · · 

This position supports the California Department of Public Health's (CDPH) mission and strategic 
plan by conducting inspections, investigations, surveys, and evaluations of health care facilities and 
agencies for conformity with state licensing and federal certification requirements for compliance with 
state and federal laws, rules, and regulations relating to the delivery of medical care. Advises health 
care facility administrators and community agencies regarding state health care facilities inspection, 
licensing, and certification programs. Primary responsibility for uniform application and enforcement 
of state and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to areas affecting total patient care such as 
nursing, physician, restorative, pharmacy, social , environmental and related services. Extensive local 
and statewide travel will be required. This position may require overnight stays, evening, weekend, or 
holiday surveys. While driving on state business, the incumbent must have a valid state driver's 
license, a good driving record and is expected to drive the car safely. Incumbent will travel and wear 
appropriate Personal Protective Equipment according to guidance requirements, such as: Mask, 
gown, gloves, safety glasses or face shield during site visits to health care facilities . 

The incumbent works under the general direction of the Health Facilities Evaluator II Supervisor. 

; Special' Requirements : ·· 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health 

1ZJ Conflict of Interest (COi) 

D Background Check and/or Fingerprinting Clearance 

D Medical Clearance 

1ZJ Travel: Mandatory - Minimum of 50% 

D Bilingual: Pass a State written and/or verbal proficiency exam in 

1ZJ License/Certification: RN License 

D Other: 

Essential Functions (including percentage of time) 
35% Conducts in-depth surveys at health care facilities, individually or as part of a team, 

to determine compliance with state licensing and federal certification requirements. 
Conducts surveys, investigations, and inspections. Conducts and documents 
interviews with health care facilities' residents, staff, and other relevant personnel. 
Requests and reviews resident medical files for relevant patient information, 
documenting necessary information for regulatory and legal action while ensuring 
patient confidentiality. Independently, or as part of a team, makes a determination 
of health care facilities ' compliance with state and federal laws and regulations 
based on observations, interviews and record reviews. Conducts post-survey 
activities including reviewing health care facility plans of corrections. Conducts 
follow-up visits at health care facilities to verify facility has corrected cited 
deficiencies. Prepares written comprehensive narrative reports of findings 
including conclusions and recommendations and prepares written statements of 
deficiencies when deemed appropriate. 

30% 

25% 

The Incumbent will be the liaison and primary contact for the California Department 
of Public Health to assist health care facilities with the regulatory actions and 
processes. The incumbent will not only address infection control but will also 
provide quality and safety compliance oversight to healthcare facilities. Advises 
and assists health care facility administrators and staff in matters relating to the 
state and federal requirements for inspections, licensing, construction, and 
operation of health care facilities. 

In response to complaints submitted to the CDPH regarding patient care and 
health care delivery in licensed health care facilities, the incumbent travels to and 
conducts investigations at facilities , documenting fully for regulatory and legal 
actions all evidence relating to non-compliance. Conducts and documents 
interviews with the complainant, relevant witnesses, health care facilities' patients, 
staff, and other relevant personnel. Requests and reviews resident medical files 
for relevant patient information, documenting necessary information while ensuring 
patient confidentiality. Independently makes a determination of health care 
facilities' compliance with state and federal regulations based on observations, 
interviews and record reviews. Prepares written comprehensive narrative reports 
of investigations including conclusions and recommendations, and prepares 
written statements of deficiencies when deemed appropriate. 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency 
California Department of Public Health 

5% Develops and presents both written and verbal testimony to provide support for 
civil monetary penalties at informal conferences, citation review conferences, 
evidentiary hearings, state and federal hearings, informal dispute resolutions, 
municipal or superior court proceedings, and arbitration procedures. Responds to 
these legal actions as an expert witness on matters relating to state and federal 
laws and regulations pertaining to patient care and healthcare delivery system. 

· Marginal Fun'ctions (including percentage of time) 
5% Other duties as required, including, but not limited to, collecting data required for 

special studies and preparing licensing and complaint packets for staff. 

I certify this duty statement represents an I have read and understand the duties and 
accurate description of the essential functions requirements listed above, and am able to perform 
of this position. I have discussed the duties and hese duties with or without reasonable 
have provided a copy of this duty statement to accommodation. (If you believe reasonable 
the employee named above. accommodation may be necessary, or if unsure of a 

need for reasonable accommodation, inform the 
hiring supervisor.) 

Supervisor's Name: Date Employee's Name: Date 

Supervisor's Signature Date Employee's Signature Date 

HRD Use Only: Date 
Approved Bv: 
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(4/3/2020) Proof of Service 

PROOF OF SERVICE 

I declare that I am a resident of or employed in the County of __________________________, 

State of ___________________.  I am over the age of 18 years.  The name and address of my 

Residence or business is _________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 

On ____________________, I served the ________________________________________ 
(Date)                (Description of document(s)) 

________________________________________ in Case No. ___________________________. 
(Description of document(s) continued)     (PERB Case No.) 

on the parties listed below by (check the applicable method(s)): 

placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope for collection and delivery by 
the United States Postal Service or private delivery service following ordinary business 
practices with postage or other costs prepaid; 

personal delivery; 

facsimile transmission in accordance with the requirements of PERB Regulations 32090 
and 32135(d).  

electronic service (e-mail) - I served a copy of the above-listed document(s) by 
transmitting via electronic mail (e-mail) to the electronic service address(es) listed below  
on the date indicated.  (May be used only if the party being served has filed and served a 
notice consenting to electronic service or has electronically filed a document with the Board.  See 
PERB Regulation 32140(b).) 

(Include here the name, address, e-mail address and/or fax number of the Respondent and/or any other parties served.) 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed on __________________, at 

(Date) 
_______________________________________________. 

(City) (State)

(Type or print name) (Signature)

Sacramento

California

1808 14th Street, Sacramento, CA  95811

08/28/2020 Unfair Practice Charge

Frolan Aguiling, Chief Counsel 
California Department of Human Resources 
1515 S Street, North Building, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA  95811 
Fax No. (916) 323-4723

08/28/2020

Sacramento, California

Ronney J. Etheridge
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LOCAL 1000 

SEIU 
Stronger Together 

LEGAL SERVICES 
P.O. Box 160005 
Sacramento, CA 95816-0005 
(916) 554-1279 

DATE: 
TO: 

August 28. 2020 
Frolan Aguiling, Chief Counsel 
California Department of Human Resources 
Office of Legal Services 

FAX: ( 916) 323-4723 

PHONE: 

FROM: Anne M. Giese, Chief Counsel 

FAX: (916) 554-1292 

PHONE: (916) 554-1279 

NUMBER OF PAGES: 32 
including cover sheet 

RE: SEIU Local 1000 v. CA Dept of Public Health 
PERB Case No. TBA 
UNFAIR PRACTICE CHARGE 

If you do not receive a complete transmission, please call Ranney at (916) 
554-1279. 

The information contained in this fax transmittal is confidentia./ and may be legally privileged, legally protected 
attorney product or may be inside information. The information is intended for the use of the recipient(s) 
named above. If you have received this information in error, please immediately notifi/ us by telephone to 
arrange for a return of all documents. Any unauthorized disclosure, distribution or taking of any action in 
rP.li;mr.P. rm fhf' r.nnff'nts nf thic; infnrmatinn ic; strir.tlv nmhihiff'd and mav hf' 11nlawf11/. 
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0812812020 1:47 PM PAX 

Joh No . 
Address 
Name 
Start Time 
Call Length 
Sheets 
Result 

LOCAL 1000 

~ 

SEIU 
Stronger Together 

LEGAL SERVICES 
P.O. Box 160005 
Sacramento, CA 9581 ii-0005 
(916)554·1'279 

Send Results 

Sending is complete. 

0941 
919163234723 

08128 01:31 PM 
14 ' 55 
32 
OK 

DATE: Augus 28. 202Q 
TO: Frolan iAguiling, Chief Counsel 

California Department of Human Resources 
Office of Legal Services 

I 

FAX: ( 916)i323-4723 

PHONE: 
' 
I 

FROM; Anne fv1. Giese, Chief Counsel 
I 

FAX: (916) ~54-1292 
I 
' 

PAONE: (916) 554-1279 
I 

I 
NUMBER OF 9AGES: 32 
including cover sheet 

I 

RE: SEIU Local 1000 v. CA Dept of Public Health 
PERB Case No. TBA 
UNFAIR ,RACTICE CHARGE 

I 

I 
I 
I 

P.0001 
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1 FROLAN R. AGUILING 
Chief Counsel, Bar No. 235874 

2 JENNIFER M. PEARSON 
Assistant Chief Counsel, Bar No. 232979 

3 GAIL T. ONODERA 
Labor Relations Counsel IV, Bar No. 164275 

4 California Department of Human Resources 
1515 S Street, North Building, Suite 500 

5 Sacramento, CA 95811 
Telephone: (916) 324-0512 

6 Facsimile: (916) 323-4723 
gail.onodera@calhr.ca.gov 

7 
Attorneys for the State of California 

8 

9 
Before the Public Employment Relations Board 

10 SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL 
UNION, Local 1000, on behalf of 

11 affected Health Facility 
Evaluator Nurses, 

12 
Charging Party, 

13 v. 

14 STATE OF CALIFORNIA (CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH), 

15 
Respondent. 

16 

17 

PERB Unfair Practice Charge No. 
SA-CE-2184-S 

STIPULATION FOR SETTLEMENT AND 
RELEASE 

18 This SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE is entered into by and 

19 between the Service Employees International Union, Local 1000 

20 (hereinafter "SEIU" or "Charging Party"), on behalf of Bargaining 

21 Unit (BU) 17 Health Facilities Evaluator Nurses (HFENs), the 

22 California Department of Public Health ("CDPH" or "Respondent"), 

23 and the State of California, California Department of Human 

24 Resources (hereinafter "CalHR" or "Employer") . 

25 SEIU filed the instant Unfair Practice Charge (UPC), SA-CE-

26 2184-S, with the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) on behalf 

27 of affected BU17 HFENs on or about August 28, 2020. 

28 I I I 
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1 SEIU alleges in the instant PERB UPC, SA-CE-2184-S, that 

2 Respondent CDPH unilaterally changed the duty statement of its BU17 

3 HFENs in violation of Dills Act section 3519, subsection (c). As 

4 well as interfered with the rights of BU17 HFENs to be represented 

5 by Charging Party and the rights of Charging Party to represent 

6 BU17 HFENs in violation of Dills Act section 3519, subsections (a) 

7 and (b), respectively. 

8 WHEREAS, in the interest of harmonious labor relations, the 

9 parties to the matters herein desire to avoid the expense, 

10 inconvenience, uncertainty and delay inherent in litigation; and 

11 WHEREAS, SEIU, affected BU17 HFENs, Respondent CDPH, and 

12 CalHR, on behalf of the State of California, have agreed on a 

13 settlement of these matters in dispute between them and hereby 

14 adopt this Settlement Agreement and Release as its final 

15 disposition; 

16 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES DO STIPULATE AS FOLLOWS: 

17 1. Respondent CDPH agrees to withdraw its updated HFEN duty 

18 statement noticed and forwarded to SEIU on June 12, 2020, and 

19 agrees to operate under the prior HFEN duty statement in settlement 

20 of the instant charge, PERB No. SA-CE-2184-S. (A copy of which is 

21 attached as exhibit A.) The parties agree that Respondent CDPH is 

22 not prohibited from continuing to exercise its management right to 

23 make changes to the duties and responsibilities of CDPH HFENs in 

24 alignment with the classification specification consistent with 

25 law. Any such changes that impact the terms and conditions of 

26 employment will be noticed to SEIU and subject to meet and confer 

27 over impact upon request by SEIU at such time that CDPH may propose 

28 such changes consistent with law. 

-2-
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1 2. SEIU agrees to and hereby does voluntarily withdraw, with 

2 prejudice, its instant PERB UPC No. SA-CE-2184-S, currently re-set 

3 for a (telephonic) PERB Informal Conference on April 14, 2021 at 10 

4 a.m. with PERB Regional Attorney, Yaron Partovi. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3. Nothing herein shall be deemed precedential in any other 

case or matter. 

4. Nothing in this stipulated Settlement Agreement and 

Release shall be considered an admission of any breach of contract, 

violation of law, or any other unlawful conduct by the State of 

California, CDPH, CalHR or a concession by SEIU concerning the 

merits of this dispute. 

5. This Settlement Agreement and Release represents a full 

and final resolution of all disputes between the parties relating 

to the matters herein now settled. 

6. Nothing contained in this Settlement Agreement and 

Release shall constitute or be treated as an admission of liability 

or wrongdoing by the State of California, CDPH, CalHR, its 

predecessors, successors, related entities, affiliates, officers, 

agents, employees, attorneys and/or assigns (current or former) in 

either their official or individual capacities. Any and all 

liability or wrongdoing is hereby expressly denied. This 

Settlement Agreement and Release is the result of a good faith 

compromise. 

7. This Settlement Agreement and Release contains the entire 

agreement between the parties. The terms of this Agreement are 

26 contractual and not a mere recital. This Settlement Agreement and 

27 Release is executed without reliance upon any representation by any 

28 I I I 
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1 person concerning the nature or extent of injuries or legal 

2 lia~ility therefor. 

3 8. The attorneys whose signatures are set forth below 

4 represent that their clients have authorized the settlement set 

5 forth in this Settlement Agreement and Release. 

6 9. This settlement agreement may be signed by facsimile, e-

7 mail, scanned, and/or in counterparts, which, when all necessary 

8 signatures are obtained, shall have the same force and effect as 

9 though all signatures were executed on one document. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Dated: 

Dated: 

20 Dated: 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 Dated: 

26 

27 

28 

April 14, 2021 
AN'NE GIESE 
Chief Counsel 
Service Employees 
Union, Local 1000 

International 

Kristanna 
Rivera 

Digitally signed by 
Krlstanna Rivera 
Date: 2021.04.14 
14:03:29 -07'00' 

KRISTANNA RIVERA 
Deputy Director 
Human Resources Division 
California Department of Public 
Health 

Lily 
Cervantes 

Digitally signed by Lily 
Cervantes 
Date: 2021 .04.14 
14:24:11 -07'00' 

. 1-=r~L'""y~=c=E=R=v=A~N=T=E'""'s,,_ __________ _ 

Labor Relations Officer 
Bargaining Unit 17 
California Department of 
Resources 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Public Health 

DUTY STATEMENT 

Employee Name: 

TBD 
Classification: 

Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse 
Working Title: 

NursinQ Surveyor 
Collective Bargaining Unit: 

BarQaininQ Unit 17 
Center/Office/Division: 

Center for Health Care Quality, Licensing and 
Certification 

Position Number: 

580-XXX-8011-XXX 
Work Location: 

Tenure/Time Base: 

PermanenUFulltime 
Branch/Section/Unit: 

Field Operations Regions: I, II, Ill, IV, V, VI, & VII; 
District Offices Statewide 

All employees shall possess the general qualifications, as described in California Code of Regulations Title 2, 
Section 172, which include, but are not limited to integrity, honesty, dependability, thoroughness, accuracy, 
good judgment, initiative, resourcefulness, and the ability to work cooperatively with others. 

This position requires the incumbent to maintain consistent and regular attendance; communicate effectively 
(orally and in writing) in dealing with the public and/or other employees; develop and maintain knowledge and 
skill related to specific tasks, methodologies, materials, tools, and equipment; complete assignments in a 
timely and efficient manner; and, adhere to departmental policies and procedures. 

Job Summary 

The Health Facilities Evaluator Nurse (HFEN) conducts inspections, investigations, surveys, and evaluations of 
health facilities for conformity with licensing and certification requirements of the California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH) and for compliance with state and federal laws, rules, and regulations relating to medical care. 
Advises healthcare facility administrators and community agencies regarding State health facilities inspection, 
licensing, and certification programs. Primary responsibility is for uniform application and enforcement of state 
and federal laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to areas affecting total patient care such as nursing, 
physician, restorative, pharmacy, social, dental, and related services. Extensive travel will be required. 

Special Requirements 

D None 

D Supervision Exercised 

1:8:1 Conflict of Interest (COi) 

D Background Check and/or Fingerprinting Clearance 

D Medical Clearance 

1:8:1 Travel: 

D Bilingual: Pass a State written and/or verbal proficiency exam in 

1:8:1 License/Certification: RN License 

D Other: 

Essential Functions (including percentage of time) 

CDPH 2366 (9/17) Page 1 of2 
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State of California - Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Public Health 

35% Travels to and conducts in-depth surveys of healthcare facilities, individually or as part of a 
team, to determine compliance with state licensing and federal certification requirements. 
Conducts and documents interviews of healthcare facilities' residents, staff, and other relevant 
personnel. Requests and reviews resident medical files for relevant patient information, 
documenting necessary information for legal action while ensuring patient confidentiality. 
Independently, or as part of a team, makes a determination of healthcare facilities' compliance 
with state and federal laws and regulations based on survey findings and observations. 
Prepares written comprehensive narrative reports of findings including conclusions and 
recommendations and prepares written statements of deficiencies when deemed appropriate. 

35% In response to complaints submitted to the CDPH regarding patient care and healthcare 
delivery in licensed healthcare facilities, the incumbent travels to and conducts investigations 
of facilities, documenting fully for legal actions all evidence relating to non-compliance. 
Conducts and documents interviews of healthcare facilities' residents, staff, and other relevant 
personnel. Requests and reviews resident medical files for relevant patient information, 
documenting necessary information while ensuring patient confidentiality. Independently 
makes a determination of healthcare facilities' compliance with state and federal regulations 
and prepares written comprehensive narrative reports of investigations including conclusions 
and recommendations, and prepares written statements of deficiencies when deemed 
appropriate. 

10% Develops and presents both written and verbal testimony to provide support for civil monetary 
penalties at informal conferences, citation review conferences, evidentiary hearings, informal 
dispute resolutions, municipal or superior court proceedings, and arbitration procedures. 
Responds to these legal actions as an expert witness on matters relating to State and federal 
laws and regulations pertaining to patient care and the healthcare delivery system. 

10% Attends meetings and participates in local programs to improve uniform compliance in licensed 
health care facilities . Attends training sessions in order to keep abreast of trends in the 
healthcare delivery system and industries. 

5% Advises and assists healthcare facility administrators in matters relating to the State 
requirements for inspections, licensing, construction, and operation of healthcare facilities . 

Marginal Functions (including percentage of time) 

5% Other duties as required, including, but not limited to, collecting data required for special 
studies and preparing licensing and complaint packets for staff. 

I certify this duty statement represents an accurate I have read and understand the duties and requirements 
description of the essential functions of this listed above, and am able to perform these duties with or 
position. I have discussed the duties and have without reasonable accommodation. (If you believe 
provided a copy of this duty statement to the reasonable accommodation may be necessary, or if 
employee named above. unsure of a need for reasonable accommodation, inform 

he hiring supervisor.) 

Supervisor's Name Dale Employee's Name Date 

Supervisor's Signature Date Employee's Signature Date 

HRB Use Only: Date 

Approved By: Heather Hylton 10/17/17 
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From: Dunham, Cassie@CDPH <Cassie.Dunham@cdph.ca.gov>
Sent: Friday, August 13, 2021 6:11 PM
To: Ronald Rosson
Cc: hkrntobe@gmail.com; Marana, Diana@CDPH; Lorraine Pearlita; Jackie Gallen; Ngozi 

Ezekwo; Angela Pruitt; Mary De La Cruz; Joanne Pearson; Sylvie Becker HFEN; Anica 
Walls; Hoeber, Brian; Witherspoon, Theresa; Brown, Richard; Florence Stinger; Carolyn 
Webster; Betty Jackson-Stewart; Cindy Doyel; Chris DeMello; Julietta Ludovico; Lisa 
Meacham HFEN; Donna McClain; Lucinda Casson

Subject: RE: HFEN Out of Class Assignments- POCs

Mandi Posner issued guidance to District Managers/Administrators today at my direction.  
 
Cassie Dunham 
Acting Deputy Director 
Center for Health Care Quality 
California Department of Public Health 
P.O. Box 997377, MS 3001 
Sacramento, CA  95899‐7377 
(916) 324‐1261 (Phone) 
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Ronald Rosson <rossonron@icloud.com> 
Sent: Friday, August 13, 2021 2:23 PM 
To: Dunham, Cassie@CDPH <Cassie.Dunham@cdph.ca.gov> 
Cc: hkrntobe@gmail.com; Marana, Diana@CDPH <Diana.Marana@cdph.ca.gov>; Lorraine Pearlita 
<lorrainecastro@yahoo.com>; Jackie Gallen <caseyface@yahoo.com>; Ngozi Ezekwo 
<ngoziezekwo@yahoo.com>; Angela Pruitt <angelapruitt91@yahoo.com>; Mary Dela Cruz delacruz 
<mdlc056@gmail.com>; Joanne Pearson <onepsychoperson@gmail.com>; Sylvie Becker HFEN 
<sylviemartyn24@gmail.com>; Anica Walls <anica.g.walls@gmail.com>; Brian Hoeber 
<bhoeber@seiu1000.org>; Theresa Witherspoon <TWitherspoon@seiu1000.org>; Richard Lewis Brown 
<Rlbrown@seiu1000.org>; Florence Stinger <stinger.florence@aol.com>; Carolyn Webster 
<carolyn20078631@sbcglobal.net>; Betty Jackson‐Stewart <Bjackson.steward@gmail.com>; Cindy Doyel 
Doyel <cindydoyelunion@gmail.com>; Chris DeMello <cnldemello@comcast.net>; Julietta Ludovico 
<juliegg77@hotmail.com>; Lisa Meacham HFEN <lnmeacham@gmail.com>; Donna McClain 
<donnamcclane@sbcglobal.net>; Lucinda Casson <lucindacasson@gmail.com> 
Subject: Re: HFEN Out of Class Assignments‐ POCs 
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL. Links/attachments may not be safe. To report suspicious emails, click “Report Phish” button.
 
Thank You Cassie for the update. We await your responses however you have not given management nor 
HFEN any directive to cease and desist until you get clarity leaving ambiguity in the DO regarding the length 
and breadth of the HFEN Duty and Classification regarding this matter. We need an interim solution. 
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Thank you, 
 
Ron 
 
> On Aug 13, 2021, at 1:09 PM, Dunham, Cassie@CDPH <Cassie.Dunham@cdph.ca.gov> wrote: 
>  
> Thanks all, 
> We are working on the responses from out prior meeting re: RSS and I have made HR aware of the request 
for a second JLMC meeting on this specific issue. I have our Branch Chiefs also reviewing current practice at 
DOs as well as all pertinent documentation.  
>  
> Diana, you can reach out to Nate for direction.  
>  
> Cassie 
>  
> Cassie Dunham 
> Acting Deputy Director 
> Center for Health Care Quality 
> California Department of Public Health P.O. Box 997377, MS 3001  
> Sacramento, CA  95899‐7377 
> (916) 324‐1261 (Phone) 
>  
>  
>  
>  
> ‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
> From: hkrntobe@gmail.com <hkrntobe@gmail.com> 
> Sent: Friday, August 13, 2021 1:00 PM 
> To: Ronald Rosson <rossonron@icloud.com> 
> Cc: Marana, Diana@CDPH <Diana.Marana@cdph.ca.gov>; Dunham, Cassie@CDPH  
> <Cassie.Dunham@cdph.ca.gov>; Lorraine Pearlita  
> <lorrainecastro@yahoo.com>; Jackie Gallen <caseyface@yahoo.com>; Ngozi  
> Ezekwo <ngoziezekwo@yahoo.com>; Angela Pruitt  
> <angelapruitt91@yahoo.com>; Mary Dela Cruz delacruz  
> <mdlc056@gmail.com>; Joanne Pearson <onepsychoperson@gmail.com>;  
> Sylvie Becker HFEN <sylviemartyn24@gmail.com>; Anica Walls  
> <anica.g.walls@gmail.com>; Brian Hoeber <bhoeber@seiu1000.org>;  
> Theresa Witherspoon <TWitherspoon@seiu1000.org>; Richard Lewis Brown  
> <Rlbrown@seiu1000.org>; Florence Stinger <Stinger.florence@aol.com>;  
> Carolyn Webster <carolyn20078631@sbcglobal.net>; Betty Jackson‐Stewart  
> <Bjackson.steward@gmail.com>; Cindy Doyel Doyel  
> <cindydoyelunion@gmail.com>; Chris DeMello <cnldemello@comcast.net>;  
> Julietta Ludovico <juliegg77@hotmail.com>; Lisa Meacham HFEN  
> <lnmeacham@gmail.com>; Donna McClain <donnamcclane@sbcglobal.net>;  
> Lucinda Casson <lucindacasson@gmail.com> 
> Subject: Re: HFEN Out of Class Assignments‐ POCs 
>  
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> Hello Diana, 
>  
>  
> The Orange district office has been having HFEN approve POC as well. They have assigned this duty 
exclusively to HFEN, making the HFEN who investigated the complaint or the HFEN who was team leader of a 
survey responsible for approving the POC.  
>  
> Heidi Chadwick 
> Sent from my iPhone 
>  
>> On Aug 13, 2021, at 12:06 PM, Ronald Rosson <rossonron@icloud.com> wrote: 
>>  
>> Hello Diana, 
>>  
>> HFEN from the SFDO have been in contact with their union (SEIU Local 1000) with regards to your 
requesting them to assist with Approving POCs and to send such Approval correspondence to the Facility. they 
said this request is because of a shortage of supervisors and managers in the SFDO.  
>>  
>> Local 1000 became aware of this matter earlier in the week and asked Cassie and HR to clarify this added 
duty. We instructed Cassie that we would await her response before moving forward on the matter. Please 
communicate with Cassie about this matter as we await her response. Clarity on this duty was asked as part of 
a recent Statewide HFEN Joint Labor Management Committee Meeting (JLMC). CDPH HR has not responded to 
questions and concerns discussed at that JLMC. 
>>  
>> Thank You 
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From: Nguyen, Hang@CDPH <Hang.Nguyen@cdph.ca.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 28, 2021 11:57:56 AM 
To: CDPH CHCQ DO Orange <CDPHCHCQDOOrange@cdph.ca.gov> 
Cc: Lincer, Jackie@CDPH <Jackie.Lincer@cdph.ca.gov> 
Subject: POC Review  
  
Good Afternoon All: 
  
Recently, some of you have questioned about the POC task responsibility.  It has been the 
routine practice for the HFENs to review the POC, and HQ leadership has concurred this 
practice.  Please continue the same practice.   
Thank you all for your hard work as always. 
  
Hang Nguyen, MSN, RN 
District Manager 
California Department of Public Health 
Licensing and Certification 
Orange County District Office 
681 S Parker Street, Suite 200 
Orange, CA 92868 
Tel: 714‐567‐2906 
Cell: 714‐931‐9873 
Fax: 714‐567‐2815 or 916‐636‐6697 
Hang.Nguyen@cdph.ca.gov            

 
This message, together with any attachments, is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. It may contain information 
that is confidential and prohibited from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this 
message or any attachment is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the original sender immediately by telephone or 
by return e‐mail and delete this message, along with any attachments, from your computer. Thank you. 
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From: Vera, Ruth@CDPH <Ruth.Vera@cdph.ca.gov> 
Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 9:13:55 AM 
To: Chadwick, Heidi@CDPH <Heidi.Chadwick@cdph.ca.gov>; Marin, Nadja@CDPH <Nadja.Marin@cdph.ca.gov>; 
Mariano, Maria@CDPH <Maria.Mariano@cdph.ca.gov>; Reynolds, Anna@CDPH <Anna.Reynolds@cdph.ca.gov>; 
Athinan, Porntip@CDPH <Porntip.Athinan@cdph.ca.gov>; Nguyen, Hang@CDPH <Hang.Nguyen@cdph.ca.gov> 
Cc: McCory, Debra@CDPH <Debra.McCory@cdph.ca.gov>; Villa‐Lopez, Zeandra@CDPH <Zeandra.Villa‐
Lopez@cdph.ca.gov>; Vidrio, Carmen@CDPH <Carmen.Vidrio@cdph.ca.gov> 
Subject: POC Review‐   
  
If you have accepted a POC and will be emailing it to the analyst, please follow this process. 

 Page 1 of the 2567 and POC must have the following information: 
o The word Accepted 
o HFEN ID # 
o Date POC is accepted 

 Subject line of the email must say POC Accepted and include the facility name. Example: POC Accepted – 
Flagship Care Center 

 Email 2567 and accepted POC toZeandra.Villa‐Lopez@cdph.ca.gov andCarmen.Vidrio@cdph.ca.gov. Please do 
not email any other Support Staff. 
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�ƐƐŝŐŶŵĞŶƚ��ĞƐƉŝƚĞ�KďũĞĐƟŽŶ
/ŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶƐ͗
• 'ŝǀĞ�Ă�ǀĞƌďĂů�ƉƌŽƚĞƐƚ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĂƐƐŝŐŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƟŵĞ�ǇŽƵ�ďĞůŝĞǀĞ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƵŶƐĂĨĞ͕�ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�

ƐŚŝŌ͘�
• ZĞŵĂŝŶ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽƵƌƚĞŽƵƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĂĐƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ͘
• /Ĩ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĂƐƐŝŐŶŵĞŶƚ�ƐĂƟƐĨĂĐƚŽƌŝůǇ͕ �ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨŽƌŵ�ĂƐ�ƐŽŽŶ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌƌƵƉƟŶŐ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚ�

ĐĂƌĞ�Žƌ�ǇŽƵƌ�ǁŽƌŬ͘
• zŽƵ�ĐĂŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨŽƌŵ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ǁŚĞŶĞǀĞƌ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ǇŽƵ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐŚŝŌ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĐĞůůƉŚŽŶĞ͘� 

dŚĞ�ǁĞďůŝŶŬ�ŝƐ�ǁǁǁ͘ƐĞŝƵϭϬϬϬ͘ŽƌŐͬDKdƚŽŽůƐ�DĂŬĞ�ƐƵƌĞ�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ Ɛ͛�ĞŵĂŝů�ƐŽ�ŚĞͬƐŚĞ�ǁŝůů�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�Ă�ĐŽƉǇ͘
• &Žƌ�ƉĂƉĞƌ�ĨŽƌŵƐ�͕�ŬĞĞƉ�Ă�ĐŽƉǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŝǀĞ�Ă�ĐŽƉǇ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ�Žƌ�ŵĂŶĂŶŐĞƌ͘ �&Ăǆ�Žƌ�ŵĂŝů�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽƉǇ�ƚŽ��ĂƌŐĂŝŶŝŶŐ�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�^�/h�>ŽĐĂů�ϭϬϬϬ͕�ϭϴϬϴ�ϭϰƚŚ�^ƚ͕͘�^ĂĐƌĂŵĞŶƚŽ͕��Ă͘�ϵϱϴϭϭ�Žƌ�ĨĂǆ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ͕ �;ϵϭϲͿ�ϱϱϰͲϭϯϰϵ͘

IMPORTANT: Protect the confidentiality of your patients. Do not use their names 
or anything else that might identify them on this form.

dŽ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ�Žƌ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͗�
�Ɛ�Ă�ƉĂƟĞŶƚ�ĂĚǀŽĐĂƚĞ͕�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ�EƵƌƐĞ�WƌĂĐƟĐĞ��Đƚ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�sŽĐĂƟŽŶĂů�EƵƌƐŝŶŐ�WƌĂĐƟĐĞ��Đƚ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ǁƌŝƩĞŶ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�
ŽĨ�ŶŽƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŽĚĂǇ Ɛ͛�ĂƐƐŝŐŶŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƵŶƐĂĨĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉůĂĐĞƐ�ŵǇ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚ;ƐͿ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͘��Ɛ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ�ĂĚǀĞƌƐĞ�
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